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measurement of the interference colours, as is shown
in a pair of colour transparencies. Brown-Firth
Research Laboratories present what must have been
a very difficult subject to photograph satisfactorily,
namely, the surface of molten chromium-molybdenum
steel at 1,600° C. in a Siemens open-hearth furnace.
Several ordinary aerophotographs are shown; but
there is no doubt that the stereo-viewing of this type
of exhibit as shown by Hunting Aerosurveys, Ltd.,
is much more impressive, particularly to those
unfamiliar with the viewing of this type of photo-
graph. The exaggerated relief effect emphasizes even
slight contours, and ordinary two-dimensional photo-
graphs of this type of subject seem all the flatter by
comparison.

The photographic recording of a collection of
examples of mechanical engineering submitted by
H. C. Lane also illustrates the valuc of the stereo-
scopic record compared with that of the ordinary
paper print, although it must be remembered that,
in a series of this type, the stereophotographs, being
transparencies, are likely to excel the prints in quality
by virtue of their extended optical density-range
quite apart from the three-dimensional effect. Among
the more interesting record photographs must be
mentioned those of Lost John’s Cave, Lech Fell,
Lancs, by J. Benjamin, who, with the aid of an
illustrated plan, follows up several regions of this
cave, which contains 4,000 yards of passages, by a
series of photographs. In the record section, a Royal
Photographic Society Medal has been awarded to
J. H. Steer for his photograph of a “Tablet”, and
perhaps the ‘“‘Chair Back” of Miss J. W. Robinson
and the “Royal Festival Hall” by Miss Margarct
Harker should also be mentioned among many fine
examples.

The largest part of the section on Nature is devoted
to pictures of birds, of which the owl seems to be
the most popular. Special mention is due to W. E.
Higham for a fine series of pictures entitled ‘“‘Golden
Eagle™.

UNIVERSITY OF OXFORD

NEW DEPARTMENT OF BOTANY

HE new building of the Department of Botany

in the University of Oxford was formally opened
on October 8 by Lord Rothschild, chairman of the
Agricultural Research Council.

The first professor of botany in the University was
appointed by Charles 1I in 1669, The early teaching
of the subject was associated with the Botanic
Garden which had been founded in 1621, and huild-
ings for the study of botany were erected during the
seventeenth century just outside the Garden wall.
Extensions were made to contain the library and
herbarium of William Sherard as a condition of his
endowment of the chair of botany; but these
buildings were removed at the end of the eighteenth
century and an orangery was used for housing the
library and herbarium. This orangery was incor-
porated in the professor’s house, built by Daubeny
in 1836. Daubeny also built & lecture room which
was joined to another orangery, altered to hold the
Fielding Herbarium, presented to the University in
1851. These two orangeries within the Garden wall
were the starting-poimnts of the two separate build-
ings which, until now, have accommodated the
Department of Botany. Further additions were
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made up to 1933 by new construction and by
the lease of the adjacent laboratories of Magdalen
College.

The history of the Department meant that its
buildings were separated from the other sciontific
Departments of the University and were unsuitable
for the modern study of botany. Soon after Prof.
T. G. B. Osborn was appointed to the Sherardian
chair in 1937, the University therefore decided to
transfer the Department to a new building in the
Museum area, although this meant separating it from
the Botanic Garden. Sir Hubert Worthington was
appointed as architect and the major plans were
begun in 1939 ; but building was held up by the
War,

The new building is situated on the south side of
the University Parks, behind the Observatory and
between the Departments of Pathology and Physical
Chemistry. It is united to the new Imperial Forestry
Institute by a lecture theatre. The building has a
steel frame, reinforced concrete floors and exterior
walls of Bladon and Clipsham stone. There are
four floors with a total area of nearly 40,000 sq.
ft. and the flat roof is available for experimental
work,

The teaching of the Department is carried out in
three laboratories for advanced study and one for
elementary study. The elcmentary laboratory is
designed for a class of 102 in a room that can be
comfortably contrclled by the demonstrator. There
is a small lecture room as well as the large theatre
shared with the Department of Forestry. Research
is accommodated in large laboratories for plant
physiology and mycology and others for ecology and
cytogenetics. In addition to private laboratories for
the staff, there is also a number of research rooms
for one or two workers and rooms for special appar-
atus. All the main laboratories have their own
ancillary rooms for preparing and storing material
and apparatus. In one of the northern wings the
Fielding Herbarium, the Druce Herbarium (which
was formerly kept in its founder’s house in north
Oxford) and the Forest Botany Herbarium (which
used to be kept in the old Imperial Forestry Institute)
are collected into two large rooms. Another room
contains a small museum and the ancient herbaria.
The main store rooms in the basement are served by
ramps from street-level and by a lift to all floors
and the roof. The departmental library of some
fifteen thousand volumes is housed mainly in
two stack rooms, except for the collection of tax-
onomic works which is kept with the herbaria. The
reading room contains the Sherard Library and other
valuable old books in glass-fronted cases, and is
attractively furnished in unstained oak. The fur-
niture and fittings throughout the building have
been designed for flexibility and economy in the use
of space. Wall benches are supported on cantilevers
wherever possible and cupboards and drawers are in
interchangeable units. The main services are carried
in flues; as well as gas, water and A.c. lighting and
power lines, there are 100-volt and 6-volt p.c. circuits
in most research rooms; compressed air and fresh
air are piped to some benches.

A garden courtyard has been laid out between the
new building and the Imperial Forestry Institute
and there is a small plot on the north side and a
greenhouse on the roof available for growing plants
for experimental purposes. The Department will, of
course, continue to depend upon the Botanic Garden
for much of its material.
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